ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE

HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve

February 19, 2009
8:04 a.m

Chair
Vice Chair

Bob Lynn,
Paul Seat on,
Carl Gatto
Crai g Johnson
Peggy W/ son
Max Gruenberg
Pet e Petersen

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 13
Proposi ng amendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
to correct obsolete references to the office of secretary of

state by substituting references to the office of |ieutenant
gover nor.
- MOVED HIR 13 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 12
Rel ating to the G ound-based M dcourse Defense System
- BI LL HEARI NG CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 13
SHORT TI TLE: CONST AM SEC. OF STATE REFERENCES
SPONSOR('s): STATE AFFAI RS
02/ 02/ 09 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 02/ 09 (H STA, JUD, FIN
02/ 19/ 09 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

JESSI CA SRADER, Assistant Attorney Ceneral (AAG

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE February 19, 2009



Labor and State Affairs Section

Civil D vision

Departnent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to requests during the hearing on
HIR 13.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:04: 25 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
neeting to order at 8:04 a.m Representatives Seaton, Gatto,
Wl son, Guenberg, Petersen, and Lynn were present at the call
to order. Representative Johnson arrived as the nmeeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HIR 13- CONST AM SEC. OF STATE REFERENCES

8: 05: 08 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the only order of business was HOUSE
JONT RESOLUTION NO 13, Proposing anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska to <correct obsolete
references to the office of secretary of state by substituting
references to the office of |ieutenant governor.

8:05:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i ntroduced HIR 13, which is sponsored
by the House State Affairs Standing Commttee. He relayed that
20-30 years ago, the title of secretary of state was changed to
| i eutenant governor, but the change was omtted in two areas of
the constitution, and HIJR 13 would serve as a conformng
anendnent. He noted that the sane |egislation was introduced as
House Joint Resolution 7 in the Twenty-Fourth Alaska State
Legi slature, but did not pass. He said he does not know why.
The legislation was introduced again as House Joint Resolution
37 in Twenty-Fifth Al aska State Legislature, but was not heard
in time by both bodies.

8:07: 20 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee will be hearing a bill he is sponsoring regarding

gender neutrality, and he asked for conmittee feedback as to
whether or not it should be conmbined with HIR 13. He said his

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 2- February 19, 2009



recommendation would be to keep the two pieces of |egislation
separ at e.

CHAIR LYNN noted that conmbining the two resolutions would
require a title change.

8:09: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he strongly favors the gender
neutrality bill and would have no problem conbining the two. He
recommended that Legislative Legal and Research Services be
consulted regarding the issue of conbining two separate
constitutional anendnents and what the effects mght be in
considering "this omni bus constitutional anmendnent - a revision

whi ch under the best case is wunconstitutional." He said he
wants to avoid | egal conplications.

8:12: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that both resolutions would change
references, which would be appropriate. He predicted that the
el ectorate would not take issue with gender neutrality, since
the mpjority voted for a female governor. He suggested
conmbining the resolutions and holding themuntil a |egal opinion
was obt ai ned.

8:16: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like to see the two
resolutions remain separate, but said he would not ask for a
hearing on HIR 13 in the House Judiciary Standing Conmttee
until the gender equality |egislation had been introduced. He
said it would give the next conmttee of referral options, and
woul d not delay HIR 13.

8:17:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, in response to Chair Lynn, said the
| egi sl ation regarding gender neutrality has been scheduled for
hearing in the House State Affairs Standing Comm ttee.

8:.17.:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said he does not think there would be a

probl em conmbining the two resolutions, because neither would
prof oundly change the constitution.

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 3- February 19, 2009



8:18: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested sending a letter of intent to
t he House Judiciary Standing Comrttee.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO concur r ed.

CHAIR LYNN said, in general, he is reluctant to join two bills
toget her, because it conplicates the issue.

8:19:42 AM

JESSI CA SRADER, Assistant Attorney General (AAG, Labor and
State Affairs Section, Cvil Division, Departnment of Law, in
response Chair Lynn, said she would research answers to the
commttee's aforenentioned questions and concerns before HIR 13
is heard by the House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

8:20: 43 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else to
testify, closed public testinony.

8:21: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report HIJR 13 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HIR 13 was noved out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO observed in the fiscal note that it costs
the state $1,500 to list something in an el ection panphlet, but
it costs $22,000 to "nmake a ballot."

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said he interpreted that information to
mean that if the |anguage is concise enough to fit on one page,
then the cost would be $1,500 instead of $22, 000.

8.26:13 AM

ADJ OQURNNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Cormmittee neeting was adjourned at 8:26
a. m

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 4- February 19, 2009



